
Lanesboro City Council
Regular Meeting Agenda

Monday, February 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
Lanesboro Community Center Meeting Room and Zoom

*Zoom is provided as a way to offer more accessibility to council and committee meetings.
However, due to potential technical issues, full functionality is not guaranteed*

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86176812830?pwd=VmQycUtxblpPU1BkVEIxbG9xcWhEZz09

Meeting ID: 861 7681 2830 Passcode: 588100
Dial by your location• +1 305 224 1968 US• +1 309 205 3325 US• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

*Member Albrecht-Benson will be participating via Zoom from Gulf Dunes 412, 376 Santa Rosa Blvd., Fort Walton
Beach, FL 32548*

Call the Regular Meeting to Order 6:00 p.m.:
A. Agenda: Additions or Corrections
B. Public Comments
C. Approval of Minutes:

a. January 2, 2024 Regular Meeting
D. Consent Agenda:

a. Accounts Payable
b. 2024 Lodging Licenses
c. Resolution 2024-13: Resolution Appointing Election Judges for Presidential Primary Election
d. 2023 Audit Engagement - Smith Schafer

Agenda Requests
A. Sandra Webb - Domestic Violence Informational Signs in Public Restrooms

Department Reports:
A. Public Utilities
B. Planning & Zoning
C. Heritage Preservation
D. Library

New Business:
A. Sparrow Valley Development Agreement Amendment
B. Application for Simple Lot Split
C. Fire Tanker Quotes

Continued Business:
A. AT&T Lease Agreement
B. Former Employee Grievance Letter

Miscellaneous

Next Meeting: Monday, March 4, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.

Adjourn Regular Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86176812830?pwd=VmQycUtxblpPU1BkVEIxbG9xcWhEZz09
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1vRvAMFjwNaXPn8lpffOJMZ2o4AkgpSIS/edit?usp=drive_link&ouid=111396770602823799196&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NoxtwYwYmuWtE5JpYuJ47SuIsHl2CyoX/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yHVTxU1wnWUCz6r9oMq0XJwax2wiwS1c/view?usp=drive_link
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1mWsC336oBfNZb9ZUHIRxJYj8VNfLijDvOUDl3a6OYYs/edit?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-6FErD1Pp1HUbRyWbBKOyTn__hm4zw9f/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12bdqp3P0sWWToxEmdQlZ9trt7e3s5liU/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1GB2828tBqoy0_qUOinkbnjOAcQ0ORmaV/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1P1CRzDwEjB1_i8L4axSsPXipldVoJ6LW/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nvC_pNrd9d1PJjFYeVLgIUw8Oy9o6fzl/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YqEJGgOYOvBfxyAnrYlK8P-D6il6fuBG/view?usp=drive_link


Draft 01/03/2024 
Lanesboro City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, January 2, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

Lanesboro Community Center Meeting Room & Zoom 
 
Present:  
Members: _X_Jason Resseman  _X_ Chase Bakke _X_ Joe Goetzke  

_X_ Mindy Albrecht-Benson _X_ Kathryn Wade 
Staff:  _X_ Mitchell Walbridge _X_ Darla Taylor _X_ David Haugen  
  _   _ Mark Lawstuen  ___  Jerod Wagner  _X_ Tara Johnson  
    X   Joseph O’Koren 
Guests:  Tony Rotchadl, Shirley Mulder, Hannah Wingert, Tim Zamzow, Chelsey Skelly, Jon Buggs, 
  Jon Pieper, Karen Heimdahl, Kara Maloney, Sarah Pieper, Trenton Raygor, Tara Johnson,  
  Lori Bakke, Chase Wark, Samsung-SM, Stacy Schultz  
 
Regular Meeting 
Mayor Resseman called to order the Regular Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
 

A. Agenda: City Administrator Walbridge requested changes to the agenda:  
- Root River Game Protective League Gambling Permit Application and Resolution 2024-12 Fire 

Department Compensation be added to the Consent Agenda 
- Removal of Agenda Request from Sandra Webb – Domestic Violence Informational Signs  
- WWTF Pay Request #32 be added to Project Reports 
- Highway 250 Project Update be added to Miscellaneous  
Member Wade motioned to approve the agenda with the changes; Member Bakke seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with all in favor.  

B. Public Comments:  
a. Kara Maloney addressed the city council regarding the Filthy Fifty street closure application. 

While she supports the event, Maloney did have concerns over the full day closure of Parkway 
Avenue due to the decrease in foot traffic and retail sales for businesses. Maloney suggested the 
race finish line be moved to the bass pond parking lot.  

C. Approval of Minutes:  
a. Minutes of the December 4, 2023 Regular Meeting: Member Goetzke motioned to approve the 

minutes as presented; Member Albrecht-Benson seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in 
favor.  

D. Consent Agenda:  
a. Accounts Payable  
b. Resolution 2024-01 Designating Official Depository 
c. Resolution 2024-02 Designating Official Newspaper 
d. Resolution 2024-03 Authorizing Lawful Gambling Lanesboro Fire Department Fire Relief 

Association  
e. Resolution 2024-04 Authorizing Signature Authority for City of Lanesboro 
f. Resolution 2024-05 Establishing Mileage Reimbursement Rate  
g. Resolution 2024-06 Appointing Trustees of the Lanesboro Firefighters Relief Association  
h. Resolution 2024-07 Appointing Fire Department Officers  
i. Resolution 2024-08 Authorizing Membership Renewal in Regional Safety Group  
j. Lanesboro Claydusters Gambling Permit 
k. Resolution 2024-09 Accepting Donations  
l. Root River Game Protective League Gambling Permit  
m. Resolution 2024-12 Establishing Fire Department Officer and Member Compensation  

 



Draft 01/03/2024 
Agenda Requests:  

A. Jon Pieper spoke to the city council regarding the discharge of firearms and hunting within city limits. 
Pieper questioned whether hunting, even with bows, is allowed within city limits. Pieper stated he was 
aware of high-powered rifles being discharged for coyote hunting within city limits. Mayor Resseman 
motioned to add the discharge of firearms and hunting within city limits to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission’s March meeting agenda; Member Goetzke seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in 
favor.  

 
Project Reports: 

A. WWTF Pay Request #32: Brian Malm, Bolton and Menk Engineering, informed the council that 
Wapasha Construction still has several punch list items to complete at the wastewater treatment facility. 
Pay request #32 is for the purchase of the skid loader that was included in the project costs. Member 
Albrecht-Benson motioned to approve the pay request; Member Wade seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with all in favor.  

 
Department Updates 

A. Administration: City Administrator Walbridge shared that city administration is looking into a new 
online payment platform for public utility and city payments. City administration is also looking at 
upgrades to cyber security options being provided by the State of Minnesota’s pilot program. 
Administrator Walbridge is also working with department heads to revise the capital improvement plan. 

B. Street: Public Works Supervisor David Haugen provided an update from the Street Department.  
a. Staff have been working on tree trimming on city boulevards and in the city park.  
b. Staff assisted with two watermain breaks in the fall.  
c. Ongoing maintenance to city buildings has been completed. 
d. The city’s sander has had maintenance completed.  
e. The bath house in Sylvan Park is undergoing upgrades including new partitions, upgraded 

plumbing, new lighting, and heaters.  
 
Mayor Resseman put the meeting in recess at 6:14 p.m. 
Mayor Resseman took the meeting out of recess at 6:18 p.m. 
 
New Business 

A. Filthy 50: Trenton Raygor, Filthy Fifty coordinator, presented a street closure request for the 2024 
event. The closure request included Elmwood Street/Parkway Avenue to Coffee Street from 10 a.m. to 8 
p.m., as well as Coffee Street/Parkway Avenue to the alleyway behind Pedal Pushers from 7 a.m. to 8 
p.m. on October 12, 2024. Members discussed concerns about the length of the Parkway Avenue street 
closure as well as safety concerns that have been observed on gravel roads during past events. Members 
questioned whether the event finish line could be moved to an alternative location so that the Parkway 
Avenue closure would not be the entire day. Raygor stated that the planning committee is not willing to 
modify the race route. Member Goetzke motioned to table consideration of the street closure application 
until the February meeting so that more discussion could take place between city administration and 
event coordinators; Member Albrecht-Benson seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in favor.  

B. Former Employee Grievance Letter: City Administrator Walbridge shared concerns regarding the 
city’s relationship with the Lanesboro Public Library Board and the need to define the applicability of 
oversight and city policies to library personnel. The gray area made managing the former employee 
grievance challenging. Administrator Walbridge suggested a council sub-committee could investigate 
the claims in the grievance letter and recommend how the city council wants to respond. In addition, the 
sub-committee could also work with the Library Board’s Personnel and Policy Sub-Committees to 
determine whether Lanesboro’s library board be a governing or advisory board. Mayor Resseman 
recommended that Member Albrecht-Benson, Administrator Walbridge, and himself investigate the 
allegations in the grievance letter and meet with the applicable library board sub-committees to discuss 



Draft 01/03/2024 
board responsibilities. Member Wade motioned to establish the sub-committee as recommended by 
Mayor Resseman; Mayor Resseman seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in favor.  

C. Mayor Pro-Tempore for 2024: Mayor Resseman motioned to appoint Member Albrecht-Benson as 
mayor pro-tempore for 2024; Member Bakke seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in favor.  

 
Continued Business 

A. AT&T Lease Agreement: Mayor Resseman motioned to table consideration of the agreement terms 
until the February meeting; Member Bakke seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in favor.  

B. Resolution 2024-10 – Appointing Members to the Lanesboro Public Library Board: Mayor 
Resseman motioned to appoint Member Albrecht-Benson to the Library Board; Member Goetzke 
seconded the motion. Administrator Walbridge explained that a seven-member library board is allowed 
to have one council member as a voting member under state statute. Motion carried with all in favor.  
Members considered the applications for the remaining two library board seats. Member Wade motioned 
to approve resolution 2024-10 appointing Mindy Albrecht-Benson, Alicia Pearson, and Sjeila Goetzke 
to the Lanesboro Public Library Board; Mayor Resseman seconded the motion. After discussion, 
Member Wade withdrew her motion. Member Albrecht-Benson motioned to approve Resolution 2024-
10 appointing Mindy Albrecht-Benson, Jon Buggs, and Sjeila Goetzke to the Lanesboro Public Library 
Board; Member Bakke seconded the motion. Members Albrecht-Benson, Wade, Bakke, and Resseman 
voted in favor. Member Goetzke abstained from voting.  

C. Resolution 2024-11 – Appointing Members to the Lanesboro Economic Development Authority: 
Member Albrecht-Benson motioned to approve Resolution 2024-11 appointing Linda Tacke to the 
Lanesboro EDA; Member Bakke seconded the motion. Motion carried with all in favor.  

 
Miscellaneous 

A. Highway 250 Construction Project: Tony Rotchadl, Tim Zamzow, and Brian Malm of Bolton and 
Menk presented the scoping study report from the project, which included a preliminary concept design 
for the project. Next steps for the city include a partnership agreement and a municipal consent 
agreement which should be presented to the city council in the 2024 calendar year. It was noted that the 
project start date was moved to 2027.  

 
Next Meeting: Monday, February 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Mayor Resseman adjourned the meeting at 7:38 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Mitchell Walbridge 
City Administrator/Clerk  
  
 

















City of Lanesboro

Resolution 2024-13
Resolution Appointing Lanesboro Precinct Election Judges for

the Minnesota Presidential Nomination Primary (PNP) Election of March 5, 2024

WHEREAS, a State of Minnesota Presidential Nomination Primary Election will
be held on March 5, 2024; and

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statute 204B.21, subd.2, requires election judges for
precincts in a municipality be appointed by the governing body of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lanesboro has one voting precinct; and

WHEREAS, the following City of Lanesboro residents have agreed to serve as
election judges and have met the qualifications established by the State of Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, the following candidates for election judge have received training
and will be eligible to serve after meeting the qualifications established by the State of
Minnesota,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Lanesboro hereby
appoints the following persons to serve as election judges for the Minnesota Presidential
Nomination Primary Election of 2024, with the understanding that amendments may be
necessary to the appointments in order to fill vacancies and meet party splits; and
approves payment of an hourly wage of $15.00 per hour during election judge training
and time served on election day.

APPOINTED ELECTION JUDGES: Mitchell Walbridge, Darla Taylor, Bonita
Underbakke, Jennifer Kimball-Olson, Jerome Deden, Kathryn Wade, Kara Maloney,
Leah Steding, Joe Goetzke, Tamara DeGarmo, Vickie Torkelson

Adopted by the Lanesboro City Council this 5th day of February, 2024.

___________________
Jason Resseman
Mayor

Attested:

____________________
Mitchell Walbridge
City Administrator/Clerk



Members of American Institute of 
CPAs, Private Companies Practice Section, Minnesota Society 

of CPAsJanuary 23, 2024

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota

Lanesboro, Minnesota 

You have requested that we audit the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Lanesboro, Minnesota, as of  December 31, 2023, and for the year then ending, and the related notes to 
the basic financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Lanesboro, Minnesota’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In addition, we will audit the entity’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period ended 
December 31, 2023. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit 
engagement by means of this letter. Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of our expressing an 
opinion on each opinion unit and an opinion on compliance regarding the entity’s major federal award 
programs. The objectives of our audit of the basic financial statements are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the basic financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the basic financial statements.

The objectives of our compliance audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to form an opinion 
and report at the level specified in the governmental audit requirement about whether the entity complied 
in all material respects with the applicable compliance requirements and identify audit and reporting 
requirements specified in the governmental audit requirement that are supplementary to GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards, if any, and perform procedures to address those requirements.

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States require that required supplementary 

information (RSI), such as management's discussions and analysis (MD&A), and budgetary comparison 
information, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 

part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we 

will apply certain limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management 

regarding their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of 

assurance on the RSI. 



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 2

The following RSI is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This RSI 
will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited:

1. Management’s discussion and analysis

2. Schedule of funding progress for the retiree health plan

3. Schedule of City and Non-Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

4. Schedule of City Contributions to Pension Plans

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the City of Lanesboro, Minnesota, Minnesota's basic 
financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our 

audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 

statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. We 
intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary information in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole:

1. Financial data included in the letter of transmittal and the management’s discussion and analysis
2. The Combining and Individual Non-Major Fund financial statements and schedules
3. Supplemental financial and statistical information
4. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards

The following other information accompanying the basic financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, and our auditor's report will not provide an opinion 

or any assurance on that other information.

1. Introductory section, including a letter of transmittal, GFOA Certificate of Achievement, elected and
appointed officials and organizational chart

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the schedule to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented fairly in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Data Collection Form

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that are our 
responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is management’s 
responsibility to submit a reporting package including the basic financial statements, schedule of expenditure of 
federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection 
Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, 
and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will 
assist you in the electronic submission and certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to 
include with the reporting package submitted to pass-through entities. 

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our auditors’ 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal cognizant or oversight 
agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors in assessing programs at a 
higher risk.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 3

Audit of the Basic Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America; the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). As part of an audit of the basic 
financial statements in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit
of the basic financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the basic
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the basic financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We may advise
management about appropriate accounting principles and their application, and we may assist in the
assembly of your basic financial statements. However, management has the final responsibility for
the selection and application of accounting policies and the fair presentation of the basic financial
statements that reflect the nature and operation of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota.

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Lanesboro, Minnesota’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our engagement is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements, including those caused by error, fraud, theft, 
illegal acts, any wrongdoing within the entity, or noncompliance with laws and regulations. However, we will inform 
the appropriate level of management and those charged with governance, as AICPA professional standards require, 
of material errors, evidence of fraud, or information that come to our attention that indicates fraud may have 
occurred. In addition, we will discuss with you and, when appropriate, those charged with governance, matters 
involving noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations that come to our attention during 
the course of the audit, or through information provided by other parties, unless they are clearly inconsequential.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected exists, even though the 
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of the 
Comptroller General of the United States of America. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective and 
Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 4

Audit of the Basic Financial Statements 

As part of our audit process, we may request written representations from your attorneys, and they may bill you for 
responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written representations from you about the 
basic financial statements and related matters.

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other periods.

Our audit does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota’s basic financial 
statements. Our report will be addressed to the governing body of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota. We cannot provide 
assurance that an unmodified opinion will be rendered. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from 
its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, 
it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s) to our 
auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement without expressing an opinion. If our opinions on 
the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for 
any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline 
to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement without expressing an opinion. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws, 
regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, providing an 
opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, 
no such opinion will be expressed.

Audit of Major Program Compliance

Our audit of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota’s major federal award program(s) compliance will be conducted in 

accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform Guidance, and will include 
tests of accounting records, a determination of major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and other 

procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program 
compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on 
compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or 

withdraw from the engagement without expressing an opinion.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether material noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations, the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to major federal award programs, and the applicable compliance requirements occurred, 
whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the entity’s compliance based on the audit. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 

material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is 
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements is 

considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the entity’s compliance with the 

requirements of the federal programs as a whole.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 5

Audit of Major Program Compliance (continued)

As part of a compliance audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also identify and assess the 
risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks.

Our procedures will consist of determining major federal programs and, performing the applicable procedures 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major programs, and performing 
such other procedures as we considers necessary in the circumstances. The purpose of those procedures will be 
to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our 

report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will obtain an understanding of the entity’s internal control over 

compliance relevant to the audit in order to design and perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with 
compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s major federal award programs. Our tests will be less in 

scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report. However, we will communicate to you, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance 
that we have identified during the audit.

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the entity’s major 

federal award programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will report any significant deficiencies 
and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express an opinion on internal control.

Management Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with governance 
acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error;

3. For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended during the period and the federal
programs under which they were received;

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federally funded
activities;

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance
received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance;

6. For designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards that provides
reasonable assurance that the entity is managing federal awards in compliance with federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal awards;

7. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal laws, statutes, regulations, rules,
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs, and
implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable federal statutes, regulations, and
the terms and conditions of federal award programs;

8. For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely the financial results of each federal award in
accordance with the requirements of the award;



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 6

Management Responsibilities (continued)

9. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other studies
that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations have been
implemented;

10. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;
11. For addressing the findings and recommendations of Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD, for establishing

and maintaining a process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective
action on reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit
findings;

12. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a corrective action
plan for such findings;

13. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;
14. For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is responsible

for program compliance;
15. To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the basic financial statements including the disclosures, and relevant to federal award
programs, such as records, documentation, and other matters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit;
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity and others from whom we determine it necessary to

obtain audit evidence;
d. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will be included

in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that annual report; and
e. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the annual

report) in a timely manner prior to the date of Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD's report.
16. For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the

management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us
during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole;

17. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work;
18. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding assets;
19. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, employees

with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect on compliance;
20. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided;
21. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive

information; and
22. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your management

representation letter.

With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above, you acknowledge and understand 
your responsibility (a) for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, (c) to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any 
document that contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and that indicates that we have reported on 
such schedule, and (d) to present the schedule of expenditures of federal awards with the audited basic financial 
statements, or if the schedule will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to make the audited 
basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
no later than the date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 7

Management Responsibilities (continued)

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or 
invoices selected by us for testing.

Nonattest Services

With respect to any nonattest services we will perform the following: 

 Assist in preparing the basic financial statements and related notes of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you

 Complete or assist in completing the Auditee section of the Data Collection form
 Maintain the capital asset depreciation schedules
 Recommendation of bookkeeping adjusting journal entries
 Review City’s procedures and documentation related to Implementation of GASB 96, Subscription Based

Information Technology Arrangements
 Other general consultation as requested by you from time to time

Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and experience 

of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial statements and related 
schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service.

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota. However, we will 
provide advice and recommendations to assist management of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota in performing its 
responsibilities. 

City of Lanesboro, Minnesota’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing 
all management functions; (b) designating an individual who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or 
experience, preferably within senior management, to oversee our services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the 
services performed; (d) accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and 
maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows:

 We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards.
 The non-attest services are limited to those previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional judgment,

reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed as making
management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including determining account coding
and approving journal entries.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 8

Other

We expect to begin audit procedures in March 2023 and to issue our reports no later than June 30, 2024. 

Andrew Forliti is the engagement principal for the audit services specified in this letter. His responsibilities include 

supervising the engagement team’s services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing 
another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report.

The fee for the audit of the City’s basic financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 will not exceed 
$20,000, including expenses and $4,000 for the single audit. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation 
from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. 
If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we 
incur the additional costs.

You agree to provide us with a draft of any document that will contain, accompany or incorporate by reference the 
audited basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon prior to the issuance of such document to third 
parties. You agree not to issue such document until we have provided our permission to do so. 

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the audited financial statements and our auditor’s 
report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our report. We have no responsibility for 

determining whether such other information contained in these documents is fairly stated and will not express an 
opinion or provide any form of assurance thereon. We will read the other information and consider whether a 
material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or whether the other 

information appears to be materially misstated. If we receive the other information prior to the date of our auditor’s 
report on the basic financial statements, our auditor’s report will describe our responsibilities related to the other 

information. If, based on procedures we perform, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the 
other information exists, we will describe it in our report. 

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send data over the Internet, temporarily store electronic 
data via computer software applications hosted remotely on the Internet, or utilize cloud-based storage. Your 
confidential electronic data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. In using these data communication 
and storage methods, our firm employs measures designed to maintain data security. We use reasonable efforts 
to keep such communications and electronic data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws, 
regulations, and professional standards.

You recognize and accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any 
communications or electronic data once it has been transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access 
while stored, notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us. You consent to our use of these 
electronic devices and applications during this engagement.

Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited basic financial statements, including the basic financial 
statements published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to 

distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to 
consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document. 

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and non-

financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we cannot be 
responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm that you have all the 

data and records required to make your books and records complete.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 9

Other (Continued)

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and non-

financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we cannot be 
responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm that you have all the 
data and records required to make your books and records complete

We will communicate to management and those charged with governance in a separate letter those significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the basic financial statements that 

we have identified during our audit and that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards. 
This communication of internal control related matters is intended solely for the information and use of management, 
the audit committee or those charged with governance. The communication is not intended to be, and should not 

be, distributed to anyone other than these specified parties. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD and constitutes 
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to regulators 
and federal agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or 
regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the 
supervision of Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies 
of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and agencies may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years or for any additional period requested by 
the Cognizant Agency, Oversight Agency for City of Lanesboro, Minnesota. If we are aware that a federal awarding 

agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the 
audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. However, Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD 

does not keep any original client records, so we will return those, if any, to you at the completion of the services 
rendered under this engagement.

When records are returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, 

including potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below, you 
acknowledge and agree that upon expiration of the seven-year period Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD shall be 

free to destroy our records related to this engagement.

Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters 

of a routine nature. 

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the basic financial statements are issued.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 10

Other (Continued)

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate with those charged with governance the following 
significant findings from the audit:

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;
 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;
 Disagreements with management, if any;
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and

relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting process;
 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit

procedures;
 Representations we requested from management;
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and
 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, with

management.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our latest 
external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files.

We reserve the right to withdraw from the engagement without completing services for any reason, including, but 
not limited to, non-payment of fees, your failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, or as we determine 

professional standards require. If our work is suspended or terminated, you agree that we will not be responsible 
for your failure to meet governmental and other deadlines, or for any liability, including but not limited to, penalties 

or interest that may be assessed against you resulting from your failure to meet such deadlines. If this engagement 
is terminated before services are completed, you agree to compensate us for the services performed and expenses 
incurred through the effective date of termination.

Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD’s liability for all claims, damages, and costs arising from this engagement is 
limited to two times the total amount of fees paid by you to Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD for the service giving 

rise to this liability.  If there are no fees charged to you by Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD, notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this agreement, Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD shall not be liable for any lost profits, 
indirect, special, incidental, punitive or consequential damages of any nature even if we have been advised by you 

of the possibility of such damages.

You agree to hold us harmless from any and all claims which arise from knowing misrepresentations to us, or the 

intentional withholding or concealment of information from us by your management. You also agree to indemnify us 
for any claims made against us by third parties, which arise from any of these actions by your management. The 
provisios of this paragraph shall apply regardless of the nature of the claim.

To ensure that Smith, Schafer & Associates, LTD’s independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of 
Professional Conduct, you agree to inform the engagement principal before entering into any substantive 
employment discussions with any of our personnel.



Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lanesboro, Minnesota
Page 11

Other (Continued)

Any dispute (other than our efforts to collect an outstanding invoice) that may arise regarding the meaning, 

performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement that we have performed for you, will, 
prior to resorting to litigation, be submitted to mediation, and the parties will engage in the mediation process in 
good faith. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be administered within Olmsted County, 

Minnesota, by a mutually agreed upon mediator, according to its mediation rules, and any ensuing litigation shall 
be conducted within said county, according to Minnesota law. The results of any such mediation shall be binding 

only upon agreement of each party to be bound. The parties participating in the mediation shall bear their own 
costs, except that any charges assessed by the mediation organization shall be shared equally by the participating 
parties.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the 
arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements compliance over major federal award programs 
including our respective responsibilities.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with you and your 
staff. 

Respectfully,

Andrew Forliti, CPA
SMITH, SCHAFER & ASSOCIATES, LTD

Principal

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth our understanding of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota.

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of City of Lanesboro, Minnesota by:

Officer signature: _______________________________________________

Title: _________________________________________________________





City of Lanesboro

Resolution 2024-14
Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of the USDA Rural Business Enterprise Grant on

Behalf of the Lanesboro Economic Development Authority

WHEREAS, the Lanesboro Economic Development Authority (EDA) is duly organized under
Minnesota Statute §469; and

WHEREAS, the Lanesboro Economic Development Authority wishes to further support and
grow the business community within the City of Lanesboro; and

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) has made available funds
through the Rural Development Rural Business Enterprise Grant (RBEG) program, for which the
Lanesboro EDA is eligible to apply for and to receive; and

WHEREAS, the USDA RBEG program will assist Lanesboro’s EDA in accomplishing said goals
of supporting, retaining, and growing the business community within the City of Lanesboro through the
capitalization of an economic development revolving loan fund;

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lanesboro City Council supports the Lanesboro Economic
Development Authority by authorizing the submittal of an application for the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development Rural Business Enterprise Grant program during the 2024-2025
application cycle; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; the Lanesboro City Council appoints Mayor Resseman and the
city administrator as the authorized representatives to sign, and otherwise approve application documents
on behalf of the City of Lanesboro and Lanesboro EDA, with intention of securing funding through the
USDA, RBEG program.

Adopted by the Lanesboro City Council this 5th day of February, 2024.

___________________
Jason Resseman
Mayor

Attested:

____________________
Mitchell Walbridge
City Administrator/Clerk













AMENDMENT TO TAX ABATEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Amendment to Tax Abatement and Development Agreement (the “Amendment”) is made 

this _____ day of February, 2024, by and between the City of Lanesboro, a municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, having its principal place of 

business at 202 Parkway Avenue South, Lanesboro, Minnesota 55949 (“City”) and Sparrow 

Valley Properties LLC, a Minnesota Limited Liability Company having its principal place of 

business at 513 Parkway Avenue South, Lanesboro, Minnesota 55949 (“Company”). Both City 

and Company may be referred to as a “Party,” or collectively as the “Parties.” 

Background 

A. The Parties have entered into a Tax Abatement and Development Agreement (the

“Agreement”) dated October 18, 2022.

B. The Agreement required Company to complete the Project by December 31, 2023.

C. Company has failed to complete the Project by December 31, 2023, resulting in an Event

of Default under the Agreement.

D. Company has represented that they will complete the Project no later than May 31, 2024.

E. City is agreeable to extending the completion date of the Project to no later than May 31,

2024, subject to the terms below.

F. Based on the foregoing, the Parties wish now to amend the Agreement.

Amendment 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties 

agree as follows: 

1. The Completion of Construction date for the Project contemplated under Section III.3 of

the Agreement shall be modified from December 31, 2023 to May 31, 2024.

2. Company understands and agrees they are required to continue making loan repayments

under the current Agreement and Promissory Note even though construction of the

Project remains incomplete.

3. The duration of the Tax Abatement contemplated under the Agreement shall not extend

past tax collection year 2032.

4. Company agrees to pay the City’s attorney fees incurred in efforts for curing the Event of

Default as contemplated in the Agreement.



5. All other payment terms, and all other terms of the Agreement and Promissory Note,

shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

COMPANY CITY 

Sparrow Valley Properties LLC  Date City of Lanesboro    Date 

By: Joel Pfeffer By: Jason Resseman 

Its: _______________ Its: Mayor 

Sparrow Valley Properties LLC    Date City of Lanesboro     Date 

By: Brooke Pfeffer  By: Mitchell Walbridge 

Its: _______________ Its: City Administrator 





















































   
 

950 W BETHANY DR. / SUITE 700 / ALLEN, TX 75013 

 
 

November 27, 2023 
 
D Taylor  
202 Parkway Avenue South 
 
Lanesboro, MN 55949     
 
Re: Communications Facility located at 101 Johnson Drive, Lanesboro, MN 55949-  
 
Contract #: 144380 / FA#: 10128803 
 
Dear Landlord, 
 
As you are aware, AT&T Mobility (“AT&T”) has partnered with MD7 to work with you to facilitate certain 
modifications to the cell site lease on your property.  These modifications will allow AT&T to meet current 
business requirements and enhance your site’s value to the network. 
 
Changes in the Wireless Industry 
Recent industry developments are changing how wireless telecommunications carriers operate.  In the 
past, carriers focused on rapidly building out their networks in order to provide the best coverage.  Today, 
while consumers are enjoying greater services and better coverage than ever before, operating costs 
continue to escalate.  As a result, the wireless industry is also focusing on operating networks as efficiently 
as possible.  
 
Eliminating Risk and Increasing Value 
AT&T is addressing this shift by reviewing its cell site portfolio.  AT&T has partnered with MD7 to offer 
selected landlords like you the opportunity to minimize the business risks associated with industry 
uncertainties and to increase the value of your cell site lease.  
 
Criteria for Cellular Site Retention 
AT&T is willing to offer the following option to secure a longer-term lease with you: 

 $1,550.00 per month, commencing January 1, 2024                
 5% rent increase every 5 years, commencing August 3, 2029         
 Extension of Lease through August 2, 2057        

       
Or  
 

 Lump Sum Payment Option: Provide a one-time lump sum payment of $ 200,000.  In return, you 
will grant a ninety-nine (99) year easement on your property and assign the lease rights and rental 
income under your lease with AT&T to MD7 or an affiliate of MD7.   
 
 
It is important for you to know that the pre-payment does not change the ownership or control of 
the rest of your property in any manner. 

In order to maintain its long-term flexibility, AT&T will also require the following lease provisions to address 
future technological and network changes:  
 



  

2 

 Expansion of Permitted Use 
 
“Tenant, its personnel, invitees, contractors, agents, subTenants, or its authorized sublessees, or 
assigns may use the Premises, at no additional cost or expense, for the transmission and reception 
of any and all communications signals and to modify, supplement, replace, upgrade, expand, 
including but not limited to the number and type(s) of antennas, or refurbish the equipment and/or 
improvements thereon or relocate the same within the Premises at any time during the term of the 
Agreement for any reason, or in order to be in compliance with any current or future federal, state 
or local mandated application, including but not limited to emergency 911 communication services, 
or for any other reason.  Landlord shall reasonably cooperate in obtaining governmental and other 
use permits or approvals necessary or desirable for the foregoing permitted use.  If Landlord does 
not comply with the terms of this section, in addition to any other rights it may have at law, Tenant 
may terminate the Agreement and shall have no further liability to Landlord.  If Landlord does not 
comply with the terms of this section, Tenant will have the right to exercise any and all rights may 
available to it under law and equity, including the right to cure Landlord’s default and to deduct the 
costs of such cure from any monies due to Landlord from Tenant.” 
 

 Termination 
 
“In addition to any rights that may exist in the Agreement, Tenant may terminate the Agreement at 
any time with thirty (30) days prior written notice to Landlord for any or no reason.” 
 
 

 Right of First Refusal 
 

“Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in the Agreement, if at any time after the Effective 
Date, Landlord receives a bona fide written offer from a third party seeking any sale, conveyance, 
assignment or transfer, whether in whole or in part, of any property interest in or related to the 
Premises, including without limitation any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent 
payments associated with the Agreement or an offer to purchase an easement with respect to the 
Premises (“Offer”), Landlord shall immediately furnish Tenant with a copy of the Offer.  Tenant shall 
have the right within ninety (90) days after it receives such copy to match the financial terms of the 
Offer and agree in writing to match such terms of the Offer.  Such writing shall be in the form of a 
contract substantially similar to the Offer, but Tenant may assign its rights to a third party.  If Tenant 
chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Landlord within the ninety (90) 
day period, Landlord may sell, convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or related to the 
Premises pursuant to the Offer, subject to the terms of the Agreement.  If Landlord attempts to sell, 
convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or related to the Premises without complying 
with this paragraph, the sale, conveyance, assignment or transfer shall be void.  Tenant shall not 
be responsible for any failure to make payments under the Agreement and reserves the right to 
hold payments due under the Agreement until Landlord complies with this paragraph.  Tenant’s 
failure to exercise the right of first refusal shall not be deemed a waiver of the rights contained in 
this paragraph with respect to any future proposed conveyances as described herein.”    
 

 24/7 Access 
 
“Landlord hereby grants to Tenant, its authorized subTenants, and to any public or private utility 
serving Tenant’s Communications Facility or related equipment,  access to the Premises and to 
and over the Property twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week (24/7), including but not 
limited to, access from an accessible, open and maintained public road to the Premises, for the 
installation, maintenance, repair, modification, alteration, or refurbishment of the Communications 
Facility or any equipment related to such Communications Facility as such access is deemed 
necessary by Tenant, in its sole discretion, without the requirement of notice by Tenant to Landlord.  
In the event that any public or private utility serving Tenant's Communications Facility is unable to 
use the access provided to Tenant, the Landlord hereby agrees to grant additional access to Tenant 
or to such public or private utility, for the benefit of Tenant, at no cost to Tenant and pursuant to the 



  

3 

same terms and conditions as noted above.  The terms and conditions regarding access in the 
Agreement remain in full force and effect, except as modified by this paragraph.” 

 
 Removal/Restoration 

 
“In addition to the terms set forth in the Agreement, Landlord agrees that the Communications Facility 
and any related equipment brought to the Premises by Tenant, its agents, contractors, predecessors 
in interest or subTenants, shall be and remain Tenant’s personal property or the personal property of 
its subTenant(s), as the case may be.  Landlord waives any and all rights it may have, including any 
rights it may have in its capacity as Landlord under the Agreement to assert any liens, encumbrances 
or adverse claims, statutory or otherwise, related to or in connection with the Communications Facility 
or any portion thereof.  Tenant, in its sole discretion, may remove the Communications Facility or any 
portion of the Communications Facility at any time during the Term of the Agreement, without notice 
to Landlord and without Landlord’s consent.  Notwithstanding any terms to the contrary, Tenant will 
not be responsible for the replacement of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation, nor will Tenant be 
required to remove from the Premises or the Property any foundations or underground utilities.  Tenant, 
may, in its sole discretion, transfer any improvements or alterations to the Premises to Landlord at any 
time during the Term of the Agreement without notice to the Landlord and without the Landlord’s 
consent.” 
 
 

This letter of understanding is subject in all respects to the preparation, execution and delivery of a definitive 
amendment in form and substance mutually agreeable to each of us.  This letter will not be legally binding 
between us with respect to the proposed business relationship, but instead serves as a statement of our mutual 
intent to work toward entering into such an amendment.    
 
AT&T values its affiliation with you and hopes to continue a long and mutually profitable relationship in the 
years to come.  After having reviewed these options, please contact me prior to  December 10,. 2023.   
 
Thank you for your consideration.   
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 

Oscar Polonio 

Lease Consultant 

d: (858) 291-1809  
a: 950 W Bethany Dr., Suite 700 
  Allen, TX 75013 
e: opolonio@md7.com 
 

 
 
Authorized Agent for AT&T Mobility 
cc: Gregory D. Ohmer 

Director-Network Planning, AT&T Mobility 

 
 


	CCAgenda 2.5.2024
	Lanesboro City Council
	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Monday, February 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
	Lanesboro Community Center Meeting Room and Zoom
	*Zoom is provided as a way to offer more accessibility to council and committee meetings.
	However, due to potential technical issues, full functionality is not guaranteed*
	Join Zoom Meeting
	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86176812830?pwd=VmQycUtxblpPU1BkVEIxbG9xcWhEZz09
	Meeting ID: 861 7681 2830 Passcode: 588100
	Dial by your location• +1 305 224 1968 US• +1 309 205 3325 US• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
	*Member Albrecht-Benson will be participating via Zoom from Gulf Dunes 412, 376 Santa Rosa Blvd., Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548*
	Call the Regular Meeting to Order 6:00 p.m.:
	A. Agenda: Additions or Corrections
	B. Public Comments
	C. Approval of Minutes:
	a. January 2, 2024 Regular Meeting
	D. Consent Agenda:
	a. Accounts Payable
	b. 2024 Lodging Licenses
	c. Resolution 2024-13: Resolution Appointing Election Judges for Presidential Primary Election
	d. 2023 Audit Engagement - Smith Schafer
	Agenda Requests
	A. Sandra Webb - Domestic Violence Informational Signs in Public Restrooms
	Department Reports:
	A. Public Utilities
	B. Planning & Zoning
	C. Heritage Preservation
	D. Library
	New Business:
	A. Sparrow Valley Development Agreement Amendment
	B. Application for Simple Lot Split
	C. Fire Tanker Quotes
	Continued Business:
	A. AT&T Lease Agreement
	B. Former Employee Grievance Letter
	Miscellaneous
	Next Meeting: Monday, March 4, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
	Adjourn Regular Meeting


	1.2.24 Regular Meeting
	Payables2524
	Lodging Renewals2024
	Resolution 2024-13 Appointing Election Judges for the Minnesota Presidential Nomination Primary
	City Audit Engagement Letter 2023
	Resolution 2024-14 - Submittal of USDA RBEG Grant
	Domestic Violence Informational Signs Request
	2023 Lanesboro Public Library Annual Report
	Amendment to Sparrow Valley Development Agreement
	Pfeffer Lot Split Application
	1636_001
	1637_001

	fire tanker quotes
	Preston Police Department Request Letter
	AT&T Terms Sheet



